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May 11, 2010

The Honorable Mayor, Members of Council
And Citizens of the Town of Smyina
smyma, Delaware 19977

Ladies and Gentiemen:

We are pleased fo present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {"CAFR") for the Town of
Smyrna. This report is for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. This report is published to comply
with the provisions of Section 8.4 of the Town Code. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is ¢
report that tells the finoncial story of the Town through narrative, financial statements and
charts/graphs. The CAFR not only gives the summary and detalled information for the year being
reported but also includes information for the previous ten years.

The preparation of a CAFR takes the financial reporting of the Town of Smyrma io the highest level.
Responsibility for both accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and faimess of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Town. We believe the data
as presented is accurate in all material respects. It is presented in @ manner designed fo fairly
present the financial position and results of operations of the Town as measured by the financial
activity of #s various funds. Al disclosures necessary fo enable the reader to gain a clear
understanding of the Town's financial affairs have been included.

The financial statements in this report have been audited by Barbacane, Thomton and Company, an
Independent firm of cetfified public accountants as required by Section 8.4 of the Town Code,
Barbacane, Thomnton and Company has provided an unqualified opinion on the Town's financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2009, The independent auditors' report is located at the
front of the financial section of this report.

Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A"} provides a narrative infroduction, overview and
analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should
be read in conjunction with it. Our MD&A can be found immediately following the report of our
independent auditors.

The organization, form, contents of this CAFR, the accompanying financial statements and the
statistical tables were prepared in accordance with the standards established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board ["GASB"), the Government Finance Officers Association {'GFOA"Y and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA".



To The Honorable Mayor, Members of Council and Citizens of the Town of
Smyrna

Profite of the Town

This CAFR includes all funds of the Town, consistent with the guidance contained in GASB 14, The
Financial Reporting Entify, and GASB 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component
Units. The criferia used by the Town fo evaluate whether additional entities should be included in the
Town's reporting entity as component units includes whether the Town can impose its will on these
entifies and whether these entifies bring the Town financial benefit or burden.

The Town of Smyra was incorporated in 1817, under the provisions of the Stafe of Delaware. The
Town's strategic iocation in the northeast, in addition to its iocation 12 miles north of the State Capital
of Dover, and 30 miles south of the major business cenfer of Newark and Wilmington, makes it a
competitive location for business, Smyma's historic small town atmosphere and its great pride in its
quality of life and educationat system make it highly desirable for families and homeowners. Smyra
was recently ranked 31 in the nation and number one in the state among towns ranging between
5,000 and 15,000 people. The Town currently occupies a land area of 7.268 square kilometers and
serves a population of approximaiely 11,040.

The Town's governing body is composed of a Mayor and six Council members. Three Council
members are elected from designated districts and serve staggered, three-vear terms. Three
members of Council and the Mayor are elected at-large. The Mayor serves a two-year term, the other
three of the alarge elected members serve three-year terms. The Council is responsible for all
matters of policy and is the authority for levying taxes, securing revenues, authorizing expenditures of
Town funds and incuring Town debts. The Town of Smyma operates under a Council - Manager form
of government,

The Town provides a full range of services as mandated by the Town code or adopted by Town
Councll. They include police profection, streets and sanitation maintenance, recreation, library,
public improvements, planning and zoning, safety inspections, electric power generation and
distribution, water and wastewater services, legisiative services and general administration.

Within the Town is a volunteer fire company that is autonomous. Under established criteria, operations
of the Citizens’ Hose Company No. 1 Inc. are not a part of this report, The Citizens' Hose responds to
over 400 alarms and accidents every year and is capable of handling most fire and rescue needs.
The Town provides funding fo the Citizens’ Hose for assistance with operating supplies. These
payments are part of the General Fund operating budget. o

The Smyrna School District does not meet the established criteria for inclusion in the reporing entity
and, accordingly, is excluded from this report,

The Town Council shall, on or before the second regular Town Council meeting in December in each
year, adopt a budget for the succeeding fiscal year, This annuat budget serves as the foundation for
the Town of Smyma's financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund and
depariment,

Town Facilities and Depariments

The Town's main administration building locoted af 27 Souih Market Street Plozg houses the Town
Managers Office, Business Office, Planring and Inspection Office and Council Chambers. The Town
Manager is responsible for implementing policies enacted by the Mayor and Council by providing
day-fo-day administration and operations management of the Town Staff. The Business Office handies



To The Honorable Mayor, Members of Council and Citizens of the Town of
Smyrna

utilify and tax billing, computer systems management, accounting and financial management
services and voler operations. The Planning and Inspection Office handles building permits,
subdivision and site plan approvals, and renfal and building construction inspections.

The Police Department is located af 325 West Glenwood Avenue with a contingent of 23 swomn
officers and seven civilian emplovees as well as 24-hour emergency police dispatching. In order to
deal with specialized law enforcement situations, the Department has several highly trained units such
as K-9 unit, School Resource Officer, DARE Officer, Special investigation Unit, Tactical Team,
Motorcycle Patrol Unit and Bicycle Patrol Unit,

The Public Works Depariment located at 220 Artisan Drive frecently relocated from 307 West
Glenwood Avenue) handles electric service, tfrash service, streefs and parks maintenance, and water
and sewer service. Trash is contracted with a private company but billing is handied through the
Town.

The Smyrma Public Library is located at 107 South Main Sireet and open fo the public.

Local Economy

Major employers located within the Town's boundaries include Wal-Mart Distribution Center, Delaware
Home and Hospital for the Chronically il and the Smyma School District.

The current unemployment rate within Kent County is 8.2 percent, an increase over last year's rate of
5.8 percent. The Increase is consistent with national and regional trends in foday's struggling
economy. Kent County's unemployment rate compared slightly favorably to the state's unemploy-
ment rate of nine percent. The Town's population growth has climbed steadily and is expected o
increase. The Town's current estimated population is 11,040, an increase from the 2000 census which
placed the Town’s population at 5,679. This is also an increase from the estimated population at
December 2008 of 10,435. A significant portion of this growth is aifributed fo workers and refirees
relocating fo Smyrna from other states seeking lower taxes and housing costs, as well as an athractive
cuality of life.

While new construction continued during the fiscal year, construction fees received declined by
approximately 22 percent from the prior year. This decline is a refiection of the economic slowdown
within the last year. Neveriheless, the Town issued 882 building permits with a construction value of
$25.1 million, including 84 apartments, 47 single family dwelling and 72 townhouses. Buring 2009 the
Town recorded 45 new or expanded businesses including five medical and related services, two
fitness centers, a wide variety of professional and general offices, retall stores offering products from
pet supplies to jewelry to candy, two nursery/daycares and o number of auto sales and services.

Major Initigtives

The Town continues to move forward with the Downtown streetscape project which involves Installing
new brick sidewalks and new lamp posis and the placement of utilities underground. In addition,
Phase | of the Town's “four comers” project was completed in 2009 which involved significant
upgrades to the electric, street, water and sewer infrastruciure.

The Town also finalized construction on ifs new municipal complex which now houses its public works,
electiic, fleet maintenance and warehousing functions, replacing obsolete and unsafe facilities and
freeing the site for fulure expansion of the Police Department.



To The Honorable Mayor, Members of Council and Citizens of the Town of
Smyrna

In 2009 Town Council authorized the borrowing of up to $5,975,000 from the Delaware Water Poliution
Control Revolving Fund to finance a number of municipal projects to improve, upgrade and expand
the Town of Smyrma wastewater systemn. These projects include replacement of old sewer mains and
upgrades of o number of fift stafions, along with plans for sewer exiensions in support of fulure
economic development opportunities and residential growth.

In addition. Town Council authorized the borrowing of up to $3,768,000 from the Delaware Drinking
Water State Revolving Fund available under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act ("ARRA") to
consfruct a number of projects to improve and upgrade the Town of Smyma's water distribution
system. These projecis address obsolefe water main and treatment faciiities essential for the provision
of high quality water services. The Town was one of only six municipalities in Delaware to receive ARRA
funding and was the first to both be awarded and o complete a water project under the stimulus
program.

The Town Is a recipient of an Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant which is being used to
replace inefficient street lighting with new induction and LED technology, reducing its energy
consumption and contributing to a healthier environment,

The Town initiated planning, completed a needs assessment and fostered the organization of a
citizens-based Library Guild to begin the process of obtaining a new, regional library, Additionally,
the Town is working in collaboration with another cltizens-based “Friends” group to preserve and
promofe the historically significant Belmont Hall building and site,

Through its Business Development Committee and with professional services, the Town is actively
implementing business retention and recruitment plans to enhance Smyma’s economy and viability.

Accounting Sysfem and Budgetary Control

All governmental funds utilize the modified accrual basis of accounting with revenue being recorded
when susceptible to accrual, identified as both measurable and available.  Available means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereaffer to pay current liabilities. Expendifures
are generally recognized when the related fund liability is Incurred except for principal and interest on
general iong-ferm debt which is recognized when due. Financial statements for the Proprietary Fund
are maintained on the accruai basis of accounting, with revenus recognized when earmned and
expenses recorded when incurred.

in developing and evaluating the Town’s accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy
of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthotized use
or disposition; (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements; and (3)
rmainfaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost
and benefits require estimates and judgments by management,

Alt internal accounting conirol evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the
Town's internal accounting controls: (1) adequately safeguard assets; {2) provide reasonable
assurance of proper recording of financial fransactions; and (3) mainigin accountability for assets.

The Town budgets and expends funds foliowing the Town Code. The Town's annually required budget
is the approved spending plan for the fiscal year and is revised as necessary, in compliance with the
requirements of the Town Code. Legal budgetary control is maintained at the department ievel under
the direction of the Town Manager.



To The Honorabile Mayor, Members of Council and Citizens of the Town of
Smyrna

Cash Manogement Policies and Prgciices

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and obligations
of U.S. inshumentaiities. Investment income includes appreciation/depreciction in the falr value of
investments. Increases in fair value duting the year do not necessarily represent trends that will
continue; nor is it always possible fo realize such amounis, especially in the case of temporary
changes In the fair value of invesiments, that the government intends to hold fo maturity,

Ris, nagement

The Town purchases commercial insurance for areas of potential losses. Additional information on the
Town's fisk management activities can be found in the notes to the financial sictements. In an effort to
proactively work on safety and security issues; the Town provides safety fraining fo its employees every
yeqar.

The Town participates in the State of Delaware Consortium for medical benefits for the employees of
the Town.

Acknowledgments
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FINANCIAL SECTION



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

May 11, 2010

To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Smyna
Smyma, Delaware

We have qudited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each maijor fund and the aggregate remaining fund informafion of the Town of
Smyrna, Smyma, Delaware, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, which collectively
comprise the Town's basic financial statements as fisted in the table of contents. These financic
statements are the responsibility of the Town of Smyma's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinicn on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year summarized comparative
information has been derived from the Town's 2008 financial statements and, in our report dated
August 17, 2009, we expressed ungualifled opinions on the respective financtal statements of the
governmentai activities, the business-type activilies, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audifing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An cudit aiso includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinions.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Smyma, Smyma, Delaware, as of
December 31, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable thereof, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America,

in accordance with Government Audifing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 11,
2010, on our consideration of the Town of Smyma's interal controt over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and
other matters, The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit,

I



To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Smyma

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 13 - 22 and the schedule of funding progress -
pension plans on pages 59-60 are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. We have applied cerfain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquities of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. Howevert, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audlt was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial siafements that
collectively comprise the Town of Smyrna, Delaware's basic financial stalements. The introductory
section, combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements, ond sialistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not ¢ required part of the basic finoncial
statements. The accompanying schedule of federal expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, "Audifs of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations,* and is also not a required
part of the basic financial statements of the Town of Smyrma, Delaware. The combining nonmajor
fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected
fo the auditing procedures applied in fhe audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion,
are falrly stated, in all matetial respects, in relation to the basic financial statements faken as g whole.
The infroductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the audifing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on them,

Gabacares Thonts: 7%%

BARBACANE, THORNTON & COMPANY
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Town of Smyrna
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited
December 31, 2009

The Honorable Mavyor and Town Councll are pleased to present to readers of the financial staterments
of the Town of Smyra this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the
calendar year ended December 31, 2009. Readers are encouraged to consider the information
presented herein In conjunction with additional information fumished in the financial statements and
notes to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

»

in the govemmental activities, general revenues and transfers accounted for 64 percent of
total revenues and program revenues 46 percent of total revenues (prior year, 62 percent and
38 percent, respectively). A significant porfion of the general revenues decrease is aifribuiable
to decreased revenues from transfer taxes as a result of the slowdown in the real estate market
and g one-time revenue source in the prior year from the sale of a piece of property. The
increase in program revenues is attributed mostly to federal funding from Delaware
Department of Transporation for the Town's streetscape improvement project.

In the govermmental activities, current total expenditures increased from $8,111,209 in 2008 to
$8,723,743 in 2009. This represents an eight percent increase. This increase is attributable
mostly to the implementation of GASB No. 45 gs disclosed in the footnotes.

Total revenues in the Town’s General Fund decreased from $5,719,791 in 2008 fo $5,220,704 in
200%. This represents a nine percent decreqse in foial revenues for the General Fund. This
decrease is atiributable mostly to a decrease in transfer taxes which is a result of the stowdown
in the real estate market.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s Governmental Funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $4,658,555 which is a decrease from the prior year balance of
$7,873,456. This decrease is offributable to planned capifal projects expenditures for the
Town's infrastruciure projects.

As of the end of the cunent fiscal year, the Town's business-type activities reported net assets of
§24,750,226, an increase of $2,476,798 as compared fo the prior year. The current year
increase in net assets can be attributed to caplial acquisitions net of any applicable debt and
the resulls of current year operations. User charges approximated the prior year due to stable
rates and a slight increase in customers.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended fo serve as an infroduction o the Town's basic financial
statements. The Town of Smyma's basic financial statements are comprised of three components:

1. Entity-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3 Notes to the financial statements

-13-



Town of Smyrna
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited (cont'd)
December 31, 2009

This report also contains other supplementary information In addition fo the basic financial statements
fhemselves.

Entity-wide Financial Statements. The entity-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Town's finances, in o manner similar fo a private-sector business.
There are two enfity-wide statements presented in this report.

e The Statement of Nef Assefs presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabiliies, with
the difference between the two reported as nef assefs. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving
of deteriorating.

e The Stafement of Activities presents information showing how the Town’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the fiming of reloted cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this siatement for some items that will resuit
in cash flows only in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncoliected taxes and compensated absences.)

Both of the enfity-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town thof are supported
principally by faxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
{business-type activities).

In the entity-wide financial statements, the District's activities are divided info two categories:

® Governmental Activities: Most of the Town's basic setvices are included here, such as general
government, public safety, public works, sanitation, economic development, and culiure and
recreation.

) Business-fype Activities: The Town charges fees fo help it cover the costs of cerain services
provided, such as water and sewer operations and an electric distribution operation. The Town
purchases 100 percent of its electiic supply requirements from the Delaware Municipal Electric
Corporation ("DEMEC"} under a long-term full requirements service confract. In addition, the
Town Is charged a fee by Kent County to discharge the Town's proportionate share of waste
water info ifs respective facilities under an operating contract.

The entity-wide financlal statements can be found on pages 23 and 24 of this report.

Fund Fingncigl Statements. The fund financial siatements provide more detailed information about
the Town's funds. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used fo maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific actlivities or objectives. The Town, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories:
Governmental Funds, Proprieiary Funds and Fiduciary Funds.

Governmenfal Funds: Most of the Town's basic services are included in Govermnmental Funds.
Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
acfivities in the entity-wide financial statements. However, unlike the entity-wide financial statements,
Govemnmental Fund financical statements focus on shorf-ferm inffows and oufflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources avallable at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements,

-i4-



Town of Smyrna
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited (cont'd)
December 31, 2009

Because the focus of Governmental Funds is narrower than that of the entity-wide financial statements,
it is useful fo compare the information presented for Governmental Funds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the entity-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers
may better understand the long-ferm impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both
the Governmenial Funds balance sheet and the Governmental Funds statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide o reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between Governmental Funds and Governmental Acfivities.

The Town maintains several individua! Governmental Funds. Information is presented separately in the
Governmental Funds balance sheet and in the Governmental Funds siatement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and the Capital Reserve Funds,
both of which are considered to be major funds.

Data from the Nonmajor Governmental Funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
individual fund data for each of these Nonmajor Govermnmental Funds is provided in the form of
combining stafernents in this report.

The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstiate compliance with the budget.

The basic Governmental Fund financial statements can be found on pages 25 o 28 of this repor.

Propriefary Funds: The Town maintains two different types of Proprietary Funds: the Waler and Sewer
Fund and the Electric Fund. These funds are Enterprise Funds. Enferprise Funds are used o report the
same functions presented as Business-fype Acfivities in the entity-wide financial staiements. These
funds account for the financial fransactions related to the water and sewer operations and electric
distribution operations of the Town.

Propriefary Funds provide the same fype of information as the enfity-wide financial siafements, only in
more detail. The Proprietary Fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water and
Sewer Fund and for the electric distribution operation, both of which are considered to be major funds
of the Town.

The basic Proprietary Fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 1o 32 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds: The Town is the fiduciary for assets that belong to others, such as its employes
pension plans, The Town is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for
their infended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. Fiduciary Funds are used fo
account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary Funds are nof
reflected in the entity-wide financial stafements because the resources of those funds are nof
available to support the Town's own programs.

The basic Fiduciary Fund financial statements can be found on page 33 and 34 of this report.
Nofes fo the Financial Stafements. The notes provide additional information that is essential fo o full

understanding of the data provided in the entity-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on 35 fo 58 of this report.




Town of Smyrna
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited (cont'd)
December 31, 2009

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with the Nonmaijor
Governmental Funds are presented immediately following the footnotes. Combining and individual
fund stafements and schedules can be found on pages 61-62 of this report.

ENTITY-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earfier, net assefs may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govermnment's financial
position. in the case of the Town of Smyma, assets exceeded liabilities by $45,793,660 at the close of
the most recent calendar year. The table below summarizes the net assets of the Town at December
31, 2609 and 2008.

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Assets:
Current and other assets $ 6256090 $ 9916230 § 5654,136 § 5192192 $11,910226 $15,108,422
Capital assets 20,495,778 17,485,893 29,361,813 27,484,247 49,857,592 44,970,140

Total Assets 26,751,869 27,402,123 35,015,949 32,676,439 61,767,818 60,078,562
Liabifities:
Long-term liabilities 4,390,299 4,018,015 7,380,933 7,302,352 11,771,232 11,320,367
Other liahilities 1,318,136 1,489,698 2,884,790 3,100,659 4,202,926 4,590,357

Total Liabilities 5,708,435 5,507,713 10,265,723 10,403,011 15,974,158 15,810,724
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net

of related debt 17,305,604 16,572,941 22,173,680 19,989,271 39,479,294 36,562,212

Unrestricted {deficit) {475,766) 1,126,660 1,728,248 2,284,157 1,252,480 3,410,817
Restricted 4,213,596 4,194 809 848,290 - 5,061,886 4,194,809
TOTAL NET ASSETS $21,043,434  $21,804,410 $24,750,226 $22,273,428 $45,793,660 $44,167,838

By far the largest portion of the Town’'s net assels (86 percent) reflects its investments in capltal assets
(e.g. land, buildings, machinery, equipment and infrastructure); less any refated debt used 1o acauire
those assets that Is siill oulstanding. The Town uses these assels fo provide services to citizens:
consequenily, these assets are not availabie for future spending. Although the Towr’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed o repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assetfs themselves cannof be used o
liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town’s net assets (11 percent) represents resources that are subject to

restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets, §1,252,480,
may be used fo meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
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Town of Smyrna
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited (cont'd)
December 31, 2009

The Town's net assets increased by $1,625,822 during the current year. This growth represents the
degree to which increases in ongoing revenues such as propery taxes, capital grants and
contributions, and investment earnings have outstripped simitar increases in ongoing expenses. In
addition, the Town implemented certain cosi-cutting measures to stay within its budgetary limits.

Governmental Activities. Governmenial activities decreased the Town's net assets by $850,976. This
decrease s mostly due 1o a decrease in transfer taxes due o the slowdown in the real estate market
and a one-fime revenue source in the prior year from the sale of a piece of properly that did not take
place again this year,

Business-lype Aciivities. Business-type actlivities increased the Town's nef assets by $2,476,798. The
Town's change in net assets increased by 97 percent as compared fo the prior year. This was due
mostly to a decrease in subsidizing the governmental funds.

Changes in the net assets of the Town are highlighted in the following table:

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

REVENUES
Program revenuss:
Charges for services $ 2,109,360 § 2,317,845 §16,270,148  $16,251,544  $18,372,508  $18,569,189
Operating grants and confributions 400,186 510,984 - - 400,186 518,084
Capital grants and contributions 1,145,890 852,537 1,657,139 1,404,042 2,803,129 2,258,579
General revenues:

Property taxes 1,933,324 1,841,492 - - 1,933,324 1,841,492

Transfer laxes 669,914 1,051,590 - - 669,914 1,051,590

Franchise fees 132,248 125,903 - - 132,249 125,803

investment earnings 56,471 196,127 479 2,396 56,950 198,523
Net gain on sale of capital assets - 602,138 - - - 602,138
Other 167,996 75,126 - « 167,898 75,126
TOTAL REVENUES 6,615,490 7,582,542 17,827,766 17,657,982 24,543,256 25,240,524
EXPENSES
General government 991,556 541,804 - - 991,556 541,804
Public safety 3,800,646 3,347,620 - - 3,900,646 3,347,620
Public works 2,396,831 2,686,125 - - 2,396,831 2,686,125
Planning and inspection 874,914 797,144 - - 674,814 797,144
Library 280,558 272,447 - - 290,558 272,447
Cuiture and recreation 308,638 356,473 - - 308,638 356,473
Business park 11,370 13,325 - - 11,370 13,325
Neighbiorhood housing rehabilitation 1,592 - - - 1,592 -
Interest on long-term debt 147,638 96,271 - - 147,638 96,271
Electric - - 11,505,781 11,429,814 11,505,781 11,429,814
Water/sawer - - 2,687,910 2,743,058 2,687,910 2,743,058
TOTAL EXPENSES 8,723,743 8,111,209 14,193,691 14,172,872 22,917,434 22,284,081
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Town of Smytna
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited {cont'd)
December 31, 2009

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

{cont'd) Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Change in net assets before

transfers {2,108,253) (528.667) 3,734,075 3,485,110 1,625,822 2,956,443
Transfers 1,287,277 2,228 163 (1,257,277} (2,228,153) - -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (850,9786) 1,669,486 2,476,798 1,256,857 1,625,822 2,956,443
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING

OF YEAR 21,894,410 20,184,824 22,273,428 21,016,471 44,167,838 41,211,385

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR  $21,043,434  §21,804410 $24,750,226  $22,273,428  $45,793,660  $44,167.838

The following charts lllustrate the revenue sources and uses of funds for the governmenta! activities of
the Town:

Revenues by Source

Charges for services

5%
10% ;

8 Opsrating grants and
contribuens

LI Capital grants and contributions
O Property taxes

30%

B Transfer taxes

17% B Other

Expenses by Program
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Town of Smyrna
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited (cont'd)
Pecember 31, 2009

The following charts illusirate the revenue sources and uses of funds for the business-type activities of
the Town:

Revenues by Source

Capital

contributions
9%

Charges for
services
91%

Expenses by Program

Water/Sewer
19%

Electric
81%
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Town of Smyrna
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited (coni'd)
Pecember 31, 2009

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting fo ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements,

Governmenfal Funds. The focus of the Town's Governmental Funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information Is useful in assessing
the Town's financing requitemnents. In parficulor, unreserved fund balance may serve Qs a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the calendar year.

As of the end of the current calendar year, the Town's Governmental Funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $4,658,555. The primaty component of this figure is the fund balance of the
Capital Reserve Fund at $3,891,067, which is reserved for future capifal projects.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current calendar year,
the fund balance of the General Fund was $444,959, all of which was considered unreserved. As o
measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare unreserved fund baiance to folal
fund expenditures. As of December 31, 2009, unreserved, undesignated fund balance represented
approximately six percent of total general fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the Town's General Fund increased by $122,312 during the current calendar
year. This is a significant increase of 151 percent as compared to the prior year increase of 25
percent in fund balance. This increase is due mostly to the increase in tfransfers in from the proprietary
funds to the General Fund.

Propriefary Fund. The Town's Proprietary Fund provides the same fype of information found in the
entity-wide financial siatements but in more detail.

The unrestricted net assefs of the Water and Sewer Fund and the Electric Fund at the end of the year
amounted to $1,728,246. The total growth in net assets for both funds was $24,641 and $2,452,157,
respectively. Other factors concermning the finances of these two funds have already been addressed
in the discussion of the Town's business-iype activities,

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The schedule comparing the Town's budget and actual resuits can be found on page 29. A summary
of variations between budget amounis and actual results is as follows:

¢ There wete no amendments fo the Town’s original 2009 budget.
* Actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenue by only $11,548.

« Actual expenditures were $450,113 under budgeted amounts, or six percent of the iotal budget.
As a result, fewer ransfers from proprietary funds were necessary.
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Town of Smyrna
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited {cont'd)
December 31, 2009

Capifal Assets and Debf Adminisiration

Capifal Assefs. The Town's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-fype
activities as of December 31, 2009 amounts to $49,857,592 (net of accumulated depreciation). The
following fable shows the breakdown of this figure.

CAPITAL ASSETS {net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Land $ 1,110,795 $ 1,249,124 $§ 85171 § 85171 § 1,195,066 § 1,334,205
Construction-in-progress 31,627 1,980,652 1,341,909 1,201,293 1,373,536 3,181,945
Land improvements 377,673 401,565 - . 377,673 401,565
Buildings and Improvements 5 738,413 1,646,095 2,578,009 2,401,838 8316422 4,047,933
infrastructure 11,863,486 10,648,309 25,037,792 23,427,636 36,901,278 34,075,945
Machinery and equipmant 1,373,785 1,560,148 318,932 368,300 1692717 1028457

520,495,770 $17,485.803 §$29,361,813 $27,484,247 $49,857 592 $44,970,140

Significant capital asset events within the governmental activities included the foliowing purchases
and project expenditures:

e Streetscape improvement project totaling $1,520,738
® Municipal complex project totaling $2,423,158

Significant capital asset events within the business-type activities included the following project
expenditures:

® Town's water distribution project totaling $891,251

e Town's waste water system project totaling $107,154

® Town'’s Four Corners water and sewer project totaling $§967,127

° Historical downtown electrical project totaling $97,382

. General electrical installation costs due to continued growth in Smyrma totaling $393,144

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 4 of this report.

Ouistanding Debt
Loans Payable

2009 2008
Governmental activities $ 3,190,175 $ 3,297,079
Business-type activities 7,188,123 7,494,976
TOTAL $ 10,378,208 $10,792,055
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Town of Smyrng
Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited (conf'd)
December 31, 2009

The current legal long-term debt limit for the Town cannot exceed 4.5 percent of the total assessed
valuation of all taxable property in the Town. This amounts 1o $36,435,460 of the total assessed
valuation, which is significantly more than the Town's outstanding debt.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

>

»

The Town adopted its 2010 General Fund budget in December 2009 totaling $6,239,254
{includes indirect cosis of §1,287,754) in revenues and $8,836,379 in expenditures, The
difference between budgeted revenues and expenditures will be subsidized fhrough operating
transfers from the proprietary funds. This budget represents a decrease in budgeted revenues of
three percent and a decrease in budgeted expenditures of three percent. Property tax rates
remained the same as in the prior year af 25.26 cents per §100 of assessed value.

The majority of the Town's city limits are in Kent County, for which the unemployment rate for the
county was reporfed at 8.2 percent in December 2009. This compared favorably to the state's
unempioyment rate of 2.0 percent.

The Town's fotal population at December 2009 is currently estimated af 11,040, an increase
from the 2000 census, which placed the Town's fofal population at 5,679, it also is an increase
from the estimated population of 10,435 at December 2008,

The Town’'s occupancy rate for its central business district is currently 97 percent.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed 1o provide a general overview of the Towr's finances for all those with
an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerming any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financigl information should be addressed to the Manager of
Accounting and Business Services, Town of Smyma, P.O. Box 307, 27 South Market Street Plaza,
Smyrna, DE 19977,

-20.



ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Due from cther governments
Prepaid items
Restricted assets - meter deposits
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, net
Land
Construction-in-progress
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Total Nencurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabie
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued interest
Developer deposits
Deferred revenue
Payable from restricted assets - meter deposifs
Totai Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Portions due or payable within one year
Loans payable
Portions due or payable after one year
Accrued compensated absences
Other post-empioyment benefits
Loans payable
Total Noncurrent Ligbilities
TOTAL LIABHITIES

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted (deficit)

Restricted for police

Restricted for public works

Restricted for capital projects

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

TOWN OF SMYRNA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2009
(With Summarized Comparative Data for December 31, 2008)

Gevernmental

Activities

$ 120,215
5,151,712
290,263
437,246
3,276
155,303
98,075

6,256,090

1,110,795
31,627
377,673
5,738,413
11,863,486
1,373,785

20,495,779

$ 26,751,869

$§ 244,289
54,004

6,181
169,208
813,384

1,318,136

110,723

441,993
758,131

3,079,452

4,390,299

5,708,435

17,305,604
(475,766}
59,755
262,774
3,801,067

21,043,434

$ 26,751,869

Business-type

Activities Totals
2009 2008

$ 94,331 $ 214,546 $ 3,034,082
107,385 5,259,097 68,695,840
- 290,263 209,375
3,359,605 3,796,851 3,701,066
1,024,789 1,028,065 1,045,391
998,471 1,153,774 8167
21,459 119,534 156,584
48,096 48,096 257,817
5,664,136 11,910,226 15,108,422
85,171 1,195,066 1,334,295
1,341,809 1,373,536 3,181,945
- 377,673 401,565
2,578,009 8,316,422 4,047,933
25,037,792 36,901,278 34,075,945
318,932 1,692,717 1,928,457
29,361,813 49 857,592 44,970,140
$ 35,015,949 561,767,818 § 80,078,562
$ 1,317,681 $ 1,561,950 $ 1,893,444
15,800 100,894 92,825
17,493 23,674 25,249
1,436,954 1,606,252 1,388,883
48,666 862,060 931,138
48,096 48,006 257 817
2,884,790 4,202,926 4,580,357
317,814 428,537 412,671
112,010 554,003 528,312
80,800 838,931 -
5,870,308 9,948,761 10,379,384
7,380,933 11,771,232 11,320,367
10,265,723 15,974,158 15,810,724
22,173,690 39,479,294 36,562,212
1,728,248 1,252,480 3,410,817
- 59,755 59,436
- 262,774 148,140
848,290 4,739,357 3,987,233
24,750,226 45,793,660 44,167,838
$35,015,849 $ 61,767,818 $60,078,562

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF SMYRNA
RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2009

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES $ 4,658,555

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 20,495,779

Some of the Town's assets are not available to pay for current expenditures 285,580
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including loans payable and accrued interest, are not
due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the

funds.

Loans payable $ (3,190,175)

Post-employment benefits {758,131)

Accrued interest {6,181) (3,954,487)
Compensated ahsences that are not due and payabie in the current period
are not reported in the funds. (441,993)
NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 21,043,434

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF SMYRNA

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outiays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays {$4.022,644) exceeded depreciation ($866,7391.

In the statement of activities, contributed assets are recognized as a capital
contribution and as capital assets, whereas in the gevernmental funds, they
are not recognized.

The statement of activities reports a gain or loss on the disposal of capital
assets based on the proceeds received and the net book value of the assets
at the fime of disposal. The loss on disposal is calculated as the excess of
the assets disposed ($191,419) over the accumulated depreciation of the
assets disposed {$0).

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. Deferred revenues
increased by this amount this year.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.¢. loans payable) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, whilte the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds, Accrued interest expense decreased by this amount
this year.

Expenses accrued for compensated absences and post-employment benefits
reported in the statement of activities that do not require the use of current
financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Compensated absences and post-employment benefits increased by this
amount this year.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$ (3,214,801}

3,155,806

45,400

(191,419)

32,961

108,904

239

(786,065)

$ (850,976)



TOWN OF SMYRNA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Actual
Original Amounts Variance
and Final (Budgetary Positive
Budget Basis) {(Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property faxes $ 1,875,000 $ 1,800,363 $ 257363

Transfer taxes 1,000,000 669,914 (330,086)
Special assessment/impact fees 186,500 470,676 284176
Charges for services 964,656 1,070,184 105,528
intergovernmental 299,000 308,750 89,750
Licenses, fees and permits 560,000 421,777 (138,223)
Fines and forfeits 110,000 62,553 (47.447)
Franchise fees 123,000 132,249 9,249
Investment income 60,000 2,199 (57,801)
Miscellaneous 31,000 182,039 151,039
TOTAL REVENUES 5,208,156 5,220,704 11,548
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 788,003 607,996 180,007

Pubtic safety 3,394,787 3,218,923 174,864

Public works 1,702,161 1,659,260 42,901

Planning and inspection 876,422 631,683 244,728

Library 314,784 261,747 53,037

Culture and recreation 286,348 276,030 10,318

Business park 12,000 11,370 630

Neighborhood housing rehahilitation - 1,592 {1,592)
Debt service:

Principal - 106,904 (108,904}

Interest - 147,877 {147.877)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,374,505 6,924,392 450,113

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (2,165,349) {1,703,688) 461,661

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Refund of prior year expenses - 22,399 22,399
Transfers in 2,165,349 1,805,892 (359,357)
Transfers out - {2,381) (2,391)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 2,165,349 1,826,000 (339,349)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - 122.312 122,312
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 563,975 322,647 (241,328)
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 563975 $ 444,959 $ {119,018)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Busg from other governments
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid items
Restricted assets - meter deposits
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued interest
Developer deposlits
Deferred revenue
Accrued compensated absences
Current portion of loans payable
Payable from restricted assets -
meter deposits
Total Current Liabilities
Nonecurrent Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Post-employment benefits
Loans payable
Totai Noncurrent Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital asseis, net of
related debt

Restricted for capital projects

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

TOWN OF SMYRNA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2009
(With Summarized Comparative Data for December 31, 2008)

Totals

Water
Electric and Sewer

Fund Fund
$ 29,047 3 65,284
107,385 -
- 998,474
2,827,489 432,116
968,314 56,475
15,079 6,380
47,896 200
4,095,210 1,558,926
13,149,030 16,212,783
$ 17,244,240 $ 17,771,709
3 1,083,061 $ 224,620
10,548 5,352
8,254 8,239
1,426,954 10,000
48,666 -
161,544 156,270
47,896 200
2,796,923 405,681
66,850 45,160
53,867 26,933
4,219,558 2,843 561
7.016,481 3,240,242
8,888,645 13,285,045
- 848,280
1,339,114 389,132
10,227,759 14,522 467
$ 17,244,240 $ 17,771,709

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financiat stalements.
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2009

$ 94,331
107,385
998,471

3,359,605
1,024,789
21,459
48,095

5,654,136
29,351,813

$ 35015949

$ 1,317,681
16,900
17,493

1,436,854
48,666

317,814

48,096

3,202,604

112,010
80,800
6,870,309
7,063,119

10,265,723

22,173,690

848,290
1,728,246

24,750,226

$ 35,015,849

2008

$ 542258
107,193

3,214,131
1,044,204
26,581
257,817
5,192,192

27,484,247

$ 32,676,439

$ 1,271,533
14,222
19,829

1,226,714
3,667

306,877

257,817

3700659

114,253

7,188,099

7,302,352

10,403,011

19,889,271

2,284,157

22,273,428

3 32,676,439



FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

TOWN OF SMYRNA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

(With Summarized Comparative Data for the Year Ended December 31, 2008)

OPERATING REVENUES

User service charges

Cther operating revenue
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Electric purchased

Sewer charges

System maintenance

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Depreciation

Supplies and maintenance

Truck and vehicles

Insurance

Administration expenses

Professional services

Minor capital additions
Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income
Interest expense
Stimulus federal funding
Intergovernmental
Total Nonaperating Revenues (Expenses)

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND
TRANSFERS

Transfars in
Transfers out
Daveloper capital contributions

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Electric
Fund

$13,069,636
143,742

13,213,378

8,058,927

49,259
782,970
481,624
562,589
103,382

22,574

39,218

76,015
187,735

11,254,291

1,859,087

458
(206,490}
5,000

(45,000)
(246,032)

1,713,055
68,568
(2,171,250)
414,268
24,641
10,203,118

$10,227,759

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Water
and Sewer Totals
Fund 2009 2008
$ 3,013,564 $16,083,200 $15,833,288
43,206 186,948 418,256
3,058,770 16,270,148 16,251,544
- 8,958,927 8,027,732
1,020,151 1,020,151 1,016,040
158,972 208,231 276,323
541,158 1,324,128 1,194,002
290,884 772,508 801,152
362,047 914,636 821,564
61,166 164,548 223,666
12,610 35,184 53,460
19,034 58,250 53,678
66,166 142,181 97,925
81,052 268,787 341,820
- - 25,328
2,613,240 13,867,531 13,832,680
443 530 2,402.617 2,418,854
21 479 2,396
{74,870) (281,160} (285,182}
998,471 1,003,471
- (45,000) 55,000
923,822 677,790 {337,786)
1,367,352 3,080,407 2,081,068
1,017,720 1,086,288 982,844
{172,315) {2,343,565) (3,210,997)
238,400 653,668 1,404,042
2,452 157 2,476,798 1,258,957
12,070,310 22,273,428 21,016,471
$14,522 467 $24,750,226 $22,273,428



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

TOWN OF SMYRNA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(With Surmmarized Comparative Data for the Year Ended December 31, 2008)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Received from cusiomers

Paid to suppliers for goods and services

Paid to employees for services

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCARITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers in

Transfers out

Advances fo other funds

Grant-in-aid

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CARPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Repayment of loans payable

Developer contributions and repayments of escrows

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Stimuius federat funding

Interest paid

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments

Investment incorne

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income
Adjusiments to reconcile operating income to nef cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid items
Increase {Decrease) in labilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued satarles and benafits
Deferred revenue
Meter deposits
Compensaled absences
Post-employment benefits
NET CASH PROVIDED BY QPERATING ACTIVITIES

Noncash capital and related financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets from developers

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TG STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Meter deposits, restricted

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Water
Electric and Sewer Totals

Fund Fund 2009 2008
$12,020,014 $ 3,039,938 $ 15,950,052 $ 16,003,553
{9,485,286) (1,290,277) (10,785,563} (10,938,863)
(1,201,026} {815,375} {2,016,401) (2,000,030}
2,223,702 934,286 3,157,088 3,064,860
68,568 1,017,720 1,086,288 982,844
(2,171,250) (172,315) {2,343,565) (3,210,997}
- - - (107,193)
(45,000} - {45,000) {55,600)
(2,147,682} 845 405 {1,302,277) {2,390,346)
(154,328) (152,525) (308,853) (295,794)
614,507 16,000 624,507 729,877
(536,677) (2.016,125) (2,552,802} (1,883,863)
5,000 . 5,000 -
(206,789 (76,707} {283,496} {286,001}
(278,287) {2,235,357) (2,513,644) (1,735,581)
{192} - {192) -
458 21 479 2,396
266 21 287 2,396
(202,001) {455,645) (657,646) (1,058,671)
278,944 521,129 800,073 1,858,744
3 76,943 $ 65,484 § 142427 § 800,073
$ 1,858,087 $ 443,530 $ 2402617 $ 2,418,854
552,588 362,047 914,636 821,564
{128,442) {17.032) {145,474} {208,725)
14,175 5,240 19,415 (82,657)
3,915 1,217 5,132 249
{76,268) 122,417 46,149 229,414
- - - {152,105)
1,415 263 1,678 5,951
44,999 - 44,999 (875)
(209,921) 200 {209,721} 49,247
8,286 {10,529) {2,243) (6,057)
53,867 26,933 80,800 -
$§ 2,223,702 $ 934286 § 3,157,988 $§ 3,064,860
$ - $ 239,400 § 238,400 $ 582642
$ 29,047 $ 65,284 § 94,331 $§ 542,256
47,898 200 48,086 257,817
§ 76,943 3 65,484 § 142427 $ 800,073

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Insurance contracts

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Assets held in trust for employee

pension benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET
ASSETS

TOWN OF SMYRNA
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

Totals

2008

§ 175,862
4,664,617

3,321,917

_$ 8,062,396

$ 11,662

8,050,734

$ 8,062,396

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2008

$ 116,768
3,156,931

3,165,268

6,438,867

6,438,967

$ 6,438,967



TOWN OF SMYRNA

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

ADDITIONS AND INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSSES)

Contributions:
Empleyer contribution
Siate aid - police
Total Contributions

Investment income (loss):
Interest and dividends
Net (depreciation) appreciation in fair
value of investments
Total Investment Income (loss)
Less investment expense
Net Investment Income {loss)

TOTAL ADDITIONS AND INVESTMENT INCOME
(LOSSES)

DEDBUCTIONS

Benefits paid
Administrative expenses

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Totals

2009

$ 936,828

76,292

262,563

675,306

937,868
88,305

849,564

840,564

249,084
1,823

250,917

1,611,767

6,438,867

$ 8,050,734

The accompanying notes are an integral par{ of these financial statements.
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2008

$ 836,785
89,888
926,673

290,588

(1,591,932)
(1,301,344)

80,893
(1,382,237)

(455,564)

215,797
6

215,803
(671,367)
7,110,334

$ 6,438,967



NOTE ]

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial staotements of the Town of Smyma have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles ("\GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ('GASB") is the authoritative standard-setting body
for the establishment of governmental accounting and financial reporiing principies. The
more significant of these accounfing policies are as follows:

Financial Reporting Entity

The Town of Smyma, Delaware {(the "Town") was incorporated in 1817, under the provisions of
the Siate of Delaware. The Town operates under a Council-Manager form of government
and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety, public works,
utilities, cuiture and recreation, planning and inspection, and general government.

GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entify,” as amended by GASB Staiernent No.
39, established the criteria for determining the activifies, organizations and functions of
govemnment to be included in the financial statements of the reporting entity. The criteria
used in determining whether such organizations should be included in the Town's financial
reporting entity are financial interdependences, selection of governing authority, designation
of management, ability 1o significantly influence operations, accountability for fiscal matters,
scope of public service and special financing relationships.

The Town has determined that no other outside agency meets the above criteria and,
therefore, no other agency has been included as a component unit in the Town’s financial
statements.  In addition, the Town is not aware of any entily which would exercise such
oversight which would result in the Town being considered g component unit of the entity.

Eniity-wide and Fund Financial Siatements

The entity-wide financial statements {l.e., the sialement of net assets and the stiatement of
changes In net assets) report information on alf of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by faxes and inter-govermnmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on feas and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree fo which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues inciude 1) charges
to customers who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a function or segment, and 2} gronis and contributions that are restricted o
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reporfed instead as general
revenues.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the last are excluded from the enfity-wide financial statements.
Major Individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements,  All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. In addition, the fund financial statements
present fiduciary funds by fund type.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The enfity-wide financial stafements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
eamed and expenses are recorded af the time liabilities are incurred, regardiess of the
timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items (nonexchange fransactions) are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
satisfied.

The government fund financial statlements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they become both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered fo be available if they are collected within the current petiod or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers property
tax revenue to be available if collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal period.
Revenue from federal, state and other grants designated for payment of specific Town
expenditures is recognized when the related expenditures are incurred; accordingly, when
such funds are received, they are reported as deferred revenues undil eamed. Ofher
revenues, including charges for services and miscellaneous revenues, are recorded as
revenue when received in cash because they generally are not measurable uniil actually
received.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund fiability is incutred (upon receipt of goods
or services), except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent
they have malured. General capifal assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Long-term debt issues and acquisiions under capifal leases are
reported as other financing sources.

The Town reports the following major governmentai funds:

General Fund -~ This fund Is used to account for the general operating activities of the Town.
General government, library, public safety, public works, culture and recreation, planning
and inspections, and the business park are financed through this fund with receipts from
general property taxes, transfer taxes, licenses and permits, investment interest, fines, charges
for cutrent services, intergovernmental and other revenue.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)

Capital Reserve Fund - This fund is used to account for the design, construction and
improvement of Town buildings, land improvements, and the purchase and replacement of
vehicles and machinery and equipment.

Nonmgior Govemnmental Funds - In addition to the above major governmental funds, the
Town inciudes the Municipal Sireet Aid, S.ALLE., ELD.E., Resource Officer and Forfeifure
funds in its financial statements.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These funds
account for operations that are financed primarily by user charges. The economic resource
focus concemns determining costs as a means of maintaining the capital investment and
management control. Revenues are recognized when they are eamed and expenses are
recognized when they are incurred.

These funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperafing items.
Opetating revenues and expenses generally resuft from providing services and producing
and delivering goods or services in connection with the proprietary fund's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Town's proprietary funds are electric and
water/sewer charges. Operating expenses for the Town's proprietary funds include saiaries,
employee benefits, production cosfs, supplies and administrative costs,  All revenues or
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
19289 are followed in both the entify-wide and proprietary fund financlal siaternents to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB.
Govermnments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their
business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject fo this same limifation. The Town has
elected not to follow subseqguent private-secior guidance.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:
Eiectric Fund - Used to account for the operation of an electric distribution system.

Water and Sewer Fund - Used to account for the operation of a water supply and sewage
collection system.

Fiduciary funds account for assefs held by the Town as a frustee for individuals, private
organizations and/or governmental units and are, therefore, not available 1o support the
Town's operations. The measurement focus and basis of accounting for fiduciary funds is the
same as for proprietary funds.

The Town also reports the following fund type:

Pension Trust Funds - These funds are used fo account for the assets held by the pension plan
for fullfime city employees and the pension plan for full-time police officers in o trustee
capacity for the employees of the Town. The pension plans, which are part of the Town's
legal entity, are single-employer defined benefit pension plans that provide benefits to Town
employees.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Except for interfund activity and balances beiween the funds that underlie governmental
activities and the funds that underlie business-type activities, which are reported as fransfers
and internal balances, the effect of interfund activily has been removed from these
siatements,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider all highly liguid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased o be cash
equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Town of Smyma’s water, sewer and electric ulilities experience very small losses from
uncollectible accounts. Water and sewer fees constitute a lien against real property ond
usually can be collected in full when fitle transfers. Only balances that remain after tax sales
are written off each year. Electric fees do not constifute g lien; however, maintenance of
adequate customer deposits, monthly billing and diligent collection procedures minimize
losses from uncoliectible accounts. Accordingly, an allowance for doubtful accounts has not
been established by the Town for its proprietary funds.

inventories and Prepaid ems

Inveniories of business-type activitles and proprietary fund types are valued af average cost.
Inventoties of govermnmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than
when purchased. Cerlain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting
petiods and are recorded as prepaid items in both entity-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets

Capifal assefs, including property, plant and equipment, are reporied in the applicable
govemnmental or business-type activities columns in the entity-wide financial statements. The
Town has defined capltal assets as assets with an itlal, individual cost of more than $5,000;
capital projects, inclusive of ancillary costs, in excess of $100,000; and an
astimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets may be purchased or constructed
and are recorded at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at
the date of donagtion. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
vatue of the asset or materially extend the assel's life are not capitalized.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNITING POLICIES (cont'd)

Capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the shraight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buiidings and improvements 50 years
infrastructure 20-50 years
Land improvements 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-20 years

Compensated Absences

Regular, fulldime employees begin {0 accrue vacation and sick leave when they are hired;
however, they are not eligible to use vacation and sick leave until they have completed their
first six months of employment. Sick leave s accrued at the rate of 12 days per completed
year prorated at the rate of one day for each completed month of service., Employees may
accumulate an unlimited number of sick leave days. One-half of the full amount
accumulated up to 45 days maximum is paid if terminafion is through retirement or decih.
Vacation is accrued for each monih of work performed. The accrual rate increases with
years of service up to a maximum of 24 days per year for 20 years of service and over.
Accrued vacation is paid 1o the employees upon termination of empioyment for employees
who have compileted at least six months of confinuous service. In addition, a vacation sell-
back policy has been instifuted, in which case, in December, an employee has the ability to
sell back up to a maximum of five days of unused vacation leave eamed by the employee
since the prior December,

Accumulated vacation and sick leave is accrued when incurred in the entity-wide financial
statements and proprietary fund types. A liability is reporied in the governmental funds only if
it is expendable from qvailable financial resources. Historically, the General Fund has been
responsible for liquidation of compensated absences associated with governmental fund
activities. Compensafed absences associated with proprietary funds are liquidated from the
fund in which the liability was generated.

In the fund financial stalements, governmenial fund types recognize bond premiums,
discounts and bond issuance costs during the current financial period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses, Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures,

Payments of long-term obligations are o be funded by the fund that incurred the deiot.

Fund Equity

in the fund financial stalements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally resiricted by outside parties for
use for a specific purpose. The proprietary funds report the same three componenis of net
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

assets as do the entity-wide financial statlements. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it Is the Town's policy to use restricted resources first and then
unrestricted resources Qs they are needed.

Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property when levied. All liens continue until
property taxes are paid In full. Taxes are levied on May 1 and are payable on or before
September 30. Taxes paid before May 31 are given a six percent discourt, Taxes paid after
the payable date are assessed interest at 1-1/2 percent per monih after the due date. the
Town bills and collects its own propetrty taxes. Town properly tax revenues are recognized on
a pro rata basis. Delinguent toxes are consideted fully collectible and, therefore, no
allowance for uncollectible taxes is provided. The property tax rate for 2009 was 25.26 cents
per $100 of assessed value.

Use of Estimates In the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statemenis in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect ceridgin
reported amounts and disclosures, Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets are classified as restricted at the govemment-wide level because they are
maintained in separate bank accounis and their use is limited.

Budgetary Information

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:;

a. Formatl budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
vear for the General Fund. This budget s adopted on a basis consistent with generaily
accepied accounting principles.

b, The Town Council adopts legal annual budgets for the General Fund and Proprietary
Funds. The Town Council also adopts legal project length budgets for its Capital
Reserve Fund and certain nonmajor governmental funds. Since project periods may
differ from the Town's fiscal year, a comparison of budgetary information for the
combined Capital Reserve Fund and cerfain nonmajor governmental funds would not
be meaningful and has not been presented In the accompanying financial statements,
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NOTE 2

NOTE 3

TOWN CF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

C. The Town Manager is authorized to transfer budget amounts between depariments
within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any fund
must be approved by the Town Council. Therefore, the level of budgetary responsibitity
i5 by total appropriations; however, for report purposes, this levet has been expanded
to o funcfional basis.

d. Unused appropriations for alt of the above annually budgeted funds lapse at year end.
e. For 2009, there were revisicns 1o the legally adopted budgets.

Excess of Expendifures Over Appropriations

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the General Fund incurred expendifures in excess of
appropriations in the following functions:

Neighborhood Housing Rehabilitation s 1,592
Debt service § 254,781

The excess of expenditures were funded by transfers in from the proprietary funds and current
year expenditure appropriations that were under budget.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Town of Smyma as ¢ depositor and an Investor generailly requires full and continuous
collateralization based upon fair value in the form of:

. Obligations of or guaranteed by the United States of America, or

& Obligations of the Federal National Mortigage Associafion, the Federal Home Mortgage
Corporation, Public Housing Authority or an agency or instrumentality of the Unifed
States of America, or

. General or revenue obligations of the Stote of Delaware or its municipaiities,
subdivisions, public housing authorities of any agency or instrumentality of the Siate of
Delaware.

As an investor, the Town of Smyrma may invest in any of the above cited instruments and/or
certificates of deposit or repurchase agreements fully collateralized by one or more of the
above-cited instruments.

The Town maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by oll funds. This
pool is displayed on the balance sheet and the statement of net assets as either cash or
investments. Deposits and investments of govermnmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds are
reporfed at fair value.
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NOTE 3

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (conf'd)

Deposits

Custodial Credi Risk

Custodial credit risk Is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the govemment's deposits
may not be returned. At December 31, 2009, the carnrying amount of the Town's deposits was
$262,642 and the bank balance was $981,788. Of the bank balance, $270,011 was
covered by federal depository insurance, and $711,777 was insured or registered and the
securities held by the Town or its agent in the Town's name,

The above does not include pension fund deposits disclosed in Notes 8 and 9.
Invesirments

As of December 31, 2009, the Town had the following investments:

U.S. Treasury bills $§ 3,799,460
Mutual funds 1,459,637
$ 5,259,097

U.S. Treasury bills and notes are securities of agencies of the U.S. Government that have an
implied but not explicit guarantee. Investments in external investment pools, such as those in
mutual funds, are disclosed but not subject to inlerest rate, custodial, credit or concentration
risks because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

Interest Rate Risk

The Town has an investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing
s exposure fo fair value losses arising from increasing inferest rates.  Investments under the
Town's investment policy are limited 1o g maximum matusity at ime of purchase of four years.
The Town may, for purposes of the Capital Reserve Fund only, invest in instruments having a
maximum maturity at the time of purchase of 10 years; provided, however, that the maximum
average maturity of the portfolio of the Capital Reserve Fund shall be seven years. At
December 31, 2009, the Town's investiments in 1.5, Treasury bills had maturity dates of less
than one year.

Custodial Credit Risk
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Town will not be able o recover the value of its investments or collateral

security that are in the possession of an outside party. The Town has no investments subject to
custodial credif risk,
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NOTE 4

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (cont'd)

Credit Risk

The Town has an investment policy which limits investment choices to those which are backed
by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government through either an explicit or implied
manner; obligations of a state, county or city or inslitutional investirment pools with a Moody's
Investor Services rating of "A" or better or an equivalent rating from other industry-recognized
rating agencies; and invesiments in corporate bonds and debentures with a Moody's Investor
Services or Standard and Poors rafing of at least "AA." The Town has no investments subject to
credit risk.

Concentration Risk

The investment policy of the Town does not limit amounts invesfed in U.S. Govermnment
guaranteed obligations.

The above does not include pension fund investments disclosed in Notes 8 and 9.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increqses Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
tand $ 1,249,124  § 53090 § 191419 5§ 1,110,795
Construction-in-progress 1,980,652 - 1,949,025 371,627
Total Capital Assets Not Being

Depreciated 3,229,776 53,090 2,140,444 1,142,422
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 2,504,554 4,169,397 - 6,673,951
Infrastructure 15,327,746 1,723,524 - 17,051,270
Land improvements 763,726 - - 763,726
Machinery and equipment 3,571,466 71,058 - 3,642,524
Total Capital Assefs Being Depreciated 22,167,492 5,963,979 - 28,131,471
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements $ 858459 § 77079 ¢ - § 935538
infrastructure 4,679,437 508,347 - 5,187,784
Land improvements 362,161 23,892 - 386,053
Machinery and equipment 2,011,318 257,421 - 2,268,739
Total accumuiated depreciation 7,911,375 866,739 - 8,778,114
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 14,256,117 5,097,240 - 19,353,357
Governmenial Activities Assels, Net $17,485893 §5,150,330 $2,140,444  § 20,495,779

~43-



NOTE 4

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL ASSETS {cont'd)

Business-type Activities:

Capital assets not being deprecialed:
tand

Construction-in-progress

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Capital assels being deprecicted:
Buildings and improvemenis
Infrastructure

Machinery and equipment

Teial Capital Assets Being Pepreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buiidings and improvements
infrastructure

Machinery and equipment

Tolal accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assefs Being Depreciated, Net

Business-type Activities Assefs, Net

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Planning and inspection
Library
Culture and recreation

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Electric
Water

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreqses Balance

$ 85,171 § - $ - 3 85,171
1,201,293 1,028,729 888,113 1,341,209
1,286,464 1,028,729 888,113 1,427,080
2959171 239,400 3,198,571
27,515,960 2,390,763 29,906,723
1,233,277 21,423 - 1,254,700
31,708,408 2,651,586 - 34,359,994
587,333 63,229 - 620,862
4,088,324 780,607 - 4,868,931
864,958 70,800 - 235,768
5,610,625 214,636 6,425,261
26,197,783 1,736,950 - 27,934,733
$ 27,484,247 $ 2,765,679 $ 888,113 $ 29,361,813

$ 106,445

128,094

597,12¢

2,262

14,227

18,682

$ 866,739

$ 552,589

362,047

$ 914,636



TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT

A schedule of changes in long-term debt is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increcses Decregses Balance

Governmentat Activities:
Loans payable $3,297,079 5 - 5 106,904 $3,190,175
Compensated gbsences 414,059 345,253 317,319 441,993
TOTAL $3,711,138 § 345,253 S 424,223 53,632,168
Business-type Activities:
Loans payable $7,494,976 5 - $ 306,853 $7,188,123
Compensated absences 114,253 49 977 52,220 112,010
TOTAL 57,609,229 § 49977 § 359,073 $7,300,133

Loans Pavable

Governmental Activities:

The Town obtained permanent financing in the amount of
$3,365,000. The proceeds of this note will be used to finance
construction for the municipal complex and electrical installation
services for the Four Corners Shopping Center. The loan requires
monthly payments of $21,232, including interest at 4,50%, with a

balloon payment due May 14, 2012, $3,190,175
Total Governmental Activities $3.190,175.

Business-type Activities:

Loan payable issued by the Delaware Economic Development

Authority to fund the Town's water main expansion which will serve

the Walmart Distribution Center on Route 300. The loan matures

on May 1, 2013 and bears no interest. Annual principal poyments

in the amount of $7,500 are due on May 1. $ 30,000

Loan payable issued by the Delaware Department of Natural

Resources and Environmental Control and administered by the

Delaware Department of Health and Social Services to fund

a drinking water well located on Carter Road. The loan matures

on May 1, 2024 and bears interest at 2,72% payable on May 1

and November 1. 1,314,388
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TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT {cont'd)

Loan payable issued by the Delaware Department of Natural

Resources and Environmenial Control and administered by the

Delaware Department of Health and Social Services 1o fund

the North Water Tower. The ioan matures on May 15, 2027 ond

bears inferest at 2.41% payable on May 15 and November 15, 1,583,351

The Town obtained permanent financing in the amount of
$4,644,000 fo pay off & Bond Anticipation Note which matured
April 27, 2007. The proceeds from the Bond Anticipation Note
were used to finance the development and construction of an
electric substation. The loan requires monthly payments of
$29,380, inchuding interest at 4.50%, with a balloon payment

due May 14, 2012, 4,260,384
Totd Business-type Activities 188,12

An analysis of debt service requirements to maturity on the loans is as follows:

Year Ending Total
December 31, Principal interest Maturities
2010 $ 428,537 S 408,039 § 834,576
2011 445,064 391,511 836,575
2012 7,057,397 169,736 7,227,133
2013 168,100 61,132 229,232
2074 164,749 56,983 221,732
2015-2019 889,851 219,110 1,108,961
2020-2024 955,820 97,689 1,053,509
2025-2027 268,780 9,794 278,874
Total $10,378,298 $ 1,413,994 $11,792,292

Compensated Absences

At December 31, 2009, accrued compensated absences for govermnmental activities totaled
$441,993. This total is comprised of accrued vacation leave of $187,078 and accrued sick
leave of $254,915. In addition, at December 31, 2009, accrued compensated absences in
the business-type activities and proprietary funds totaled $112,010. This total is comprised of
accrued vacation leave of $49,679 and accrued sick leave of §62,331,
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TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 INTERFUND BALANCE AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:

Transfer to Transfer from
Interfund Transfers Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $§ 2,391 $ 1,805,992
Capital Reserve Fund 1,118,509 569,861
Water and Sewer Fund 172,315 1,017,720
Electric Fund 2,171,250 68,568
Non-maijor Funds - 2,324
TOTAL $ 3,464,465 $ 3,464,465

Transfers from the proprietary funds to the General Fund represent Board-approved transfers
to subsidize the operations of the Town's primary govermnment, All ofher fransters represent the
flow of resources to accommodate the costs of certain capltal projects.

NOTE 7 INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF RELATED DEBT

A schedule of invested in capital assets, net of related debt as of December 31, 2009 is as
follows:

Governmental Activities:

Total capital assets, net $ 20,495,779

Less: loans payable 3,190,175
Total Invested in Capital Assets, Net $ 17,305,604
Business-type Activities:

Total capital assets, net § 29,361,813

Less: loans payable 7,188,123
Total Invested in Capital Assets, Net S 22,173,690

NOTE 8 POLICE PENSION FUND

Plan Description and Provisions

The Town's Police Pension Fund is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan established
to provide a retirement income to supplemsnt the benefits payable under Social Security.
The full cost of the plan is assumed by the Town. Condributions are not required of the Town's
police officers.
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TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICE PENSION FUND [cont'd)

The plan was established as of January 1, 1996, spun off in 1975 to create the cumrent plans
revised as of January 1994. The financial records are mainfained on a plan year which
begins each January 1 and ends on December 31,

The plan s administered by the Committee (Plan Administration) which is comprised of the
Mayor and Town Council. The Committee is fully responsible for the plan's administration,
including eligibility for participation and determination of benefits. The Town Council has
delegated the authority to manage cerlain plan assefs to LinscofPrivate Ledger Financial
Services, Aetna Life Insurance Company and Lincoln Financial Securities Corporation,

The Town’s Police Pension Plan does nof issue a stand aione financial report but is included in
these financial statements with the required supplementary information,

As of January 1, 2009, the date of the most recent actuaiial report, the pension plan
membership consisted of the following:

Active employees 22
Terminated vested participants 4

Retfirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits .8
34

Police Pension Fund plan benefit provisions are qs follows:

All police officers are eligible fo participate in the plan after completing one year of service,
if they have attained their 21st birthday and 1,000 hours of continuous employment during
the plon vear.

Effective January 1, 1993, employees who are discharged or resign before qualifying for
retirement benefits will be entitled 1o 100 percent vested inferest in their accrued pension
benefits, payable as of the first day of the month following thelr normal retirement date
provided that they have completed at least five full years of service to the Town.

The pension plan provides for normal retirement at the earlier of attainment of age 50 and
completion of 10 yedrs of participation or completion of 20 years of vesting service; and for
employees hired after April 19, 1999, the earlier of allainment of age 55 and completion of
10 years of participation, or completion of 20 years of vesting service,

Participant benefits are based on 2-1/2 percent of the three highest years of average
compensation multiplied by benefit service.

There is no provision for early retirement,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICE PENSION FUND (cont'd)

Basis of Accounting

The Plan's policy is to prepare its financial skatementis on fhe accrual basis of accounting.
Yaluation of Investments

In accordance with GASB No, 25, investments are reported af fair value. Short-term
investments are reporied at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities hraded on a
national or international exchange are valued at the last reporfed sales price at current
exchange rates.

the pension plan's unaliccated insurance confracts are valued of cordract value. Contract
vaiue represents contributions made under the contract, plus interest atf the contract rate, less
funds used fo purchase annuities and pay administrative expenses charged by the
company.

Deposifs

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit 1isk is the risk that in the event of & bank failure, the government's deposits
may not be retured. Al December 31, 2009, the camying amount of the police pension
fund deposits was $81,971, and bank balance of the police pension fund deposits was
$81,832. Of this amount, $80,634 was insured or registered and the securities held by the
Town or its agent in the Town's name; and $1,198 was egual to the deposits in a federated
prime obligations fund held by the hrustee of the pension plan in the Town's name.

Investments

The investment objective of the Town of Smyma Police Pension Plan is fo mainfain o balanced
portfolio comprised of equity, fixed income and cash equivalent securities and, as such, is
infended to be structured less aggressively than speculative portfolios.

As of December 31, 2009, the Town of Smyma Police Pension Plan had the following
investments:

Fair Value
Domestic equity mutual funds and corporate bonds $ 1,895278
Unallocated fixed income insurance contracts 1,215,160
Totad 5 3,810,438

Iinvesiments in external investment pools, such as those in mutuagl funds and fixed income
insurance contracts, are disclosed but not subject to interest rate, custodial, credit or
concentration risks because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or
book entry form.
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TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICE PENSION FUND (cont'd)

Adminisirative Costs

Administrative costs, including the investment monager, custodial frustee and actuarial
services, are charged and paid by short-ferm assets of the plan.

Annuagl Pension Cost

Periodic employer contributions to the pension plan are defermined on an actuarial basis
using the entry age normal method assuming an investment retumn of seven petcent and o
compensation increase of 4.5 percent per year. Prior to the 2004 fiscal year, employer
contributions were determined on an actuarial basis using the frozen age enfty method. The
change in the Town's funding policy from the frozen age entry method to the entry age
normal mefhod was implemented fo eliminate the plan's unfunded actuarial fiability at the
end of 15 years from January 1, 2004,

The enfry age normal method determines a projected benefit at each active participant's
assumed retirement age assuming future compensation increases. The pian's normal cost is
the sum of each active parficipant's annual cost for the current year of service determined
such that, if it were calculated as a level percentage of compensation each vear, it would
agccumulate af the valuation interest rate over the tolal prior and future years of
service o the assumed refirement date inte an amount sufficient fo fund the projected
benefit. The plan's accrued liability is the sum of the accumuiafion of each active
participant's normal costs athributable to all prior yvears of service pius the present value of
each inactive participani's future benefits.

The recommended coniribution payable is based on an annually adjusted amortization
amount determined in a way that the unfunded actuarial accrued liability will be fully funded
at the end of the 15-year period beginning January 1, 2004.

The actuarial value of plan assets is equal to the book value of assets with Aeing Life
Insurance Company plus the market value of all other investments.

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of
compensation each year. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2009 was ¢
years.

Annuagl Percentage Net Pension
Pension of APC Obligation

Fiscal Year Ended Cost (APC) Contributed (Asset)
12/31/2009 $ 469,209 100.17% § (128,854)
12/31/2008 $ 433,209 100.00% $ (128,071)
12/31/2007 $ 434,667 106.82% $ (128,071)

The above information regarding the Police Pension Fund was taken from the January 1, 2009
Actuarial Valuation presented by Milliman USA, Inc., signed by Graham A. Harrison, FSA and
Jill M. Stanulis, EA dated December 2009.
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TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND

Plan Description and Provisions

The Town's Full-Time Employee Pension Fund is a single-employer defined benefit pension
plan established to provide a retirement income 1o supplement the benefits payable under
Scciatl Security. The fult cost of the plan is assumed by the Town. Contributions are not
required of the Town's employees.

The plan was established as of January 1, 1996, spun off in 1975 to create the curent plons
revised as of January 1994, The financial records are maintained on g plan year which
begins each January 1 and ends on December 31,

The plan is administered by the Committee (Plan Administration) which is comprised of the
Mayor and Town Council. The Committee is fully responsible for the plan's administration,
including eligibility for participation and determination of benefits. The Town Council has
delegated the authorily to manage certaln plan assets to Linsco/Private Ledger Financial
Services, Aetna Life Insurance Company and Lincoln Financial Securifies Corporation.

The Town’s Full-time Employee Pension Fund does not issue o stand alone financial report but
is included in the financial statement with the required supplementary information,

As of January 1, 2009, the date of the most recent actuarial report, the pension plan
membership consisted of the following:

Active employees 49

Terminated vested participants 21

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits

7
77

Full-fime Employee Pension Fund plan benefit provisions are as follows:

All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the plan after completing one year of
service, if they have gtigined their 21st bithday and 1,000 hours of continuous employment
dusing the plan year,

Effective January 1, 1993, employees who are discharged or resign before qualifying for
retirement benefits will be entifled fo 100 percent vested interest in their accrued pension
benefits, payable as of the first day of the month following their normal retirement date
provided that they have completed at least five full years of service to the Town.

The pension plan provides for normal refirement at age 65 and completion of 10 years of
participation, or completion of 25 years of vesting service.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND (cont'd)

Effective January 1, 2007, parficipant benefils are based on 2-1/2 petcent of the three
highest vears of average compensation multiplied by benefit service not fo exceed 40 years.
Benefits for service prior fo January 1, 2007 were based on a two percent benefit multiplier.

Eligibilily for early refirement benefit is age 55 and 10 years of vesting serice.

Voluation of Investments

In accordance with GASB No. 25, invesimenis are reporied at fair value. Shoti-term
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a
national or international exchange are valued af the last reported sales price at current
exchange rates.

The pension plan's unallocated insurance coniracts are valued at contract value. Contract
value represents confributions made under the contract, plus interest of the contract rate, less
funds used fo purchase annuities and pay administrative expenses charged by the
company.

Deposifs

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the govemment's deposits
may not be returned. Al December 31, 2009, the carrying amount of the full-fime employee
pension fund deposits was $93,891, and bank balance was $93,777. Of this amount,
$90,483 was insured or registered and the securities held by the Town or its agent in the
Town's name; and $3,294 was equal to the deposits in a federated prime obligations fund
held by the frustee of the pension plan in the Town's name,

Investments
The investment objective of the Town of Smyma Full-time Employee Pension Plan is o mainiain
a balanced porffolico comprised of equity, fixed income and cash equivalent securities and,

as such, is intended to be structured less aggressively than speculative portfolios.

As of December 31, 2009, the Town of Smyma Fulltime Employee Pension Plan had the
following investments:

Fair Vaiue
Domestic equity mutual funds and corporate bonds § 2,669,339
Unallocated fixed income insurance coniracts 1,406,757
Total § 4,076,096
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NOTE ¢

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND {conf'd)

Investments in external investment pools, such as those in mutual funds and fixed income
insurance contracts, are disclosed but not subject to inferest rate, custodial, credit or
concentration risks because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or
book entry form.

Adminisirative Costs

Administrative costs, including the investment manager, custodial trustee and actuarial
services, are charged and paid by short-term assets of the plan.

Annuat Pension Cost

Periodic employer contributions o the pension pian are defermined on an actuarial basis
using the entry age normal method assuming an investment retumn of seven percent and a
compensation increase of 4.5 percent per year. Prior to the 2004 fiscal year, employer
contributions were defermined on an actuarial basis using the frozen age entty method. The
change in the Town's funding policy from the frozen age entry method to the entry age
normal method was implemented to eliminate the plan's unfunded actuarial liobility at the
end of 15 years from January 1, 2004,

The entry age normal method determines a projected benefit af each active participant's
assumed refirement age assuming future compensation increases. The plan's normal cost is
the sum of each active participant's annual cost for the current year of service determined
such that, if it were calculated as o level percentage of compensation each year, It wouid
accumulate at the valuation interest rate over the total prior and future years of service to the
assumed retirement date infe an amount sufficient to fund the projected benefit. The plan's
accrued fiability is the sum of the accumulafion of each active parficipant's normal costs
attributable fo all prior years of service plus the present value of each inactive paticipant's
future benefits,

The recommended contribution payable is based on an annually adjusted amortization
amount determined in @ way that the unfunded actuarial accrued fability will be fully funded
at the end of the 15-year period beginning January 1, 2004,

The aciudrial value of plan assels is equal fo the book value of assets with Aetna Life
Insurance Company plus the market value of all other investments,

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being omottized as o level percentage of
compensation each year. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2009 was
nine yeaqrs.

Annuol Percentage Net Pension
Pension of APC Obligation

Fiscal Year Ended Cost {APC) Confribuied {Asset)
12/31/2009 S 542,282 100.16% $ (347,585)
12/31/2008 S 494,464 100.00% $ {346,739)
12/31/2007 $ 415,674 108.09% § (346,739)
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NOTE @

NOTE 10

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND (cont'd)
The above information regarding the Full-time Employees Pension Fund was taken from the

January 1, 2009 Actuarial Valuation presented by Milliman USA, inc., signed by Graham A.
Harrison, FSA and Jill M. Stanulis, EA dated December 2009.

POST-EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

Effective for the year ended December 31, 2009, the Town has implemented Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45, "Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions," for certain post-employment
healthcare benefits and life insurance benefifs provided by the Town. This Siatement
generally provides for prospective implementation - L.e., that emplovers set the beginning net
CPEB obligation of zero as of the beginning of the initial year. Accordingly, for financial
reporting purposes, no liability is reported for the post-employment benefits liability at the
date of fransiion,

The Town's post-employment heaithcare plan is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare
plan. The plan provides medical insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses. The
Mayor and Council have the quthority fo establish and amend benefit provisions through the
collective bargaining process with members of the professional and support stoff, an
agreement with administrative employees, and individudal employment contracts with certain
employees. The plan does not issue any financial report and is not included in the report of
any public employee retirement system or any other entity.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by
the Town Council. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing
requirements, with any additional amount to prefund as determined onnually by the Town
Council. For fiscal year 2009, the Town confributed $37,469 1o the plan for current premiums,
or approximately 76 percent of otal premiums. Plan members receiving benefits contributed
$11,903, or approximately 24 percent of total premiums, through their required monthly
contributions.

Post-employment retirement benefits are recognized when paid. Post-employment retire-
ment benefits for the year ended December 31, 2009 tolaled $37,128.

Annugl OPEB Cost and Net QPEB Obligation

The Town's annual other post-employment benefit cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer ("ARCY), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a leve! of
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NOTE 10

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POST-EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS {cont'd)

funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normat costs each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 15
years. The following table shows the componenfs of the Town's OPEB cost for the year, the
amount actually confributed fo the plan and changes in the Town's net OPEB obligation to the
plan.

Annual required conhibution S 909,731
Interest on net OPER obligation -
Adjustment fo annual required conhiibution -

Annual OPEB cost (expense) Q09,731
Coentributions made {70,808)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 838,931

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year -

Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 838,931

Funded Sitatus and Funding Progress

As of January 1, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0,00 petcent
funded. The actuarial accrued liabitify for benefits was §5,663,000, and the actuarial value of
assets was S0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability ("UAAL" of $5,663,000. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $3,545,000,
and the ratio of the UAAL 1o the covered payroll was 159.75 percent,

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assurnptions about the probability of occurtence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality and healthcare cost trends.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continudl revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future,

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes dre based on the substantive plan (the
plan as undetstood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of bensfit
costs between the employer and plan members fo thot point.  The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the eflects of shori-term
volatility in actuarial liabiliies and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.
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NOTE 10

NOTE 11

NOTE 12

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POST-EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS {cont'd)

In the January 1, 2009, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method was used.
The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0 percent per annum, discount rate compounded
annually, and an annual healthcare cost frend rate of 7.30 percent in 2009, reduced by
decrements to an ullimate rate of 4.70 percent in 2063 and later. The UAAL is being
amorfized based on o level dollar, 15-year closed period. The remaining amortization period
at December 31, 2009 was 14 yeaors.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Town offers ifs employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Infernal Revenue Code Section 457. The plon, available to all Town employees, permits them
to defer a portion of theilr salary untii future years. The plan is available to all empioyees until
termination, refirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The assets of the plan are held
for the exclusive benefit of the plan participants and their beneficiaries, and the assets shall
not be diverted for any other purpose. Each participant directs the investments in hisfher
respective accounts, and the Town has no liability for any losses that may be incurred.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Town parficipates in state and county assisted grant progiams. These programs are
subject fo program compliance audits by the graniors or their representatives. The Town is
potentially liable for any expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the ferms of
these grant programs. Management is not aware of any material fems of noncompliance
which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures.

The Town is a member of the Delaware Municipal Electric Corporation FDEMEC™)., DEMEC is o
public corporation constituted as @ joint action agency and o wholesale electric utility,
DEMEC was established in 1979 and represents nine municipal electric distribution utilities
located in the State of Delaware, DEMEC provides full requirements wholesale eleciric power
supply service to seven of the nine members, including the Town, through the operation of
owned generation assels and various confractual wholesale supply contracts with external
parties,

The Town purchases 100 percent of its electric supply reguirements from DEMEC under a full
requirements service contract that became effective June 1, 2004 and which will remain in
effect unless terminated upon one year's written notice by either party. The obligation of the
Town o purchase and pay for full requiremenis service, inciuding its allocated costs under
any then current forward contfract for capacity and energy between DEMEC and o third
party In effect as of the dale of notice of termination, shall survive the fermination of this
agreement,
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NOTE 12

NOTE 13

NOTE 14

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (cont'd)

The Town has entered into a separate power sales agreement effective May 1, 2001 fo
purchase an interest in the capacity produced by Unit No. 1 of the Warrant F. "Sam" Beasley
Power Sialion located in Smyma, Deloware, owned by DEMEC, The Town s
entitled fo a percentage of all power supply and ancillary products generated from the
existing nominal 45 MW natural gas-fired combustion turbine generator for the useful life of
the faciiity.

Under the terms of the various agreements, DEMEC is authortized to act as agent for the Town
in all motters relating o the acquisition and delivery of its wholesale power supply and
management of energy cost risk on behalf of the Town in the deregulated energy markets.

The Town is actlively engaged in the following projects which are not under formal
construction contracts:

Total
Estimated Expended at
Project Name Cost 12/31/2009
Water Distribution System Project § 3,768,000 § 891,251
Waste Water System Project 5,975,000 107,220
Lighting Energy Project 50,000 21,255
$ 9,793,000 $ 1,019,726

An additional $353,810 of construction-in-progress that was not under a formal consfruction
commitment or placed in service as of December 31, 2009 has been reflected in the
accompanying financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town maintains commercial insurance coverage for risk of losses relating to general,
automotive, police professional, public officials and crime. There has been no significant
change in coverage, and there have been no losses above insurance limits during the past
year.

ADVANCE PAYMENTS

The Town received an advance payment of impact fees tofaling $931.241 in the General
Fund. As of December 31, 2009, only an amount tolaling $129,012 was an enforceable
legal claim [(at the point the fees become nonrefundable). The remaining balance of
$802,229 has been classified as deferred revenue and will be recognized as revenue over
time as the Town is able to establish an enforceable legal claim to these resources,
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NOTE 15

NOTE 16

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STIMULUS FUNDING PROJECT RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES

Revenue Recognized Based on Eligible Project Expenditures $ 1,003,471
Revenues Recelved and Recognized (6,000;
Revenues Due o Town of Smyra at 12/31/2009 $ 998,471
Water Distribution System Project Expenditures 8 891,251
Waste Water System Project Expenditures 107,220
Energy Lighting Federal Eligible Project Expenditures 5,000
Total Eligible Project Expenditures at 12/31/2009 $ 1,003,471
Energy Grant Revenues Received but Deferred 5 45,000

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Town Council, at its meeting on May 18, 2009, passed A resolution authorizing the Town
to borrow up fo the total sum of $6,008,000 from fhe Delaware Water Pollution Control
Revolving Fund fo finance a number of municipal projects to improve, upgrade and expand
the Town of Smyrna wastewater system. The Town closed on this loan in March 2010 for an
amount totaling $5,975,000.

The Town Council, af its meeting on March 1, 2010, passed o resolution authorizing the
borrowing of not more than $1,000,000 from a line of credit to assist in providing adequate
cash reserves o facilitate the processing and receipt of reimbursements for infrastructure
project expenditures covered by loans or grants from the Delaware Office of Drinking Water,
Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmenial Control, Delaware
Department of Transportation and any loans or grants awarded to the Town from g state or
federal program which involves a reimbursement provision,

The Yown has evaluated all subsequent evenis through May 11, 2010, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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(1)

TOWN OF SMYRNA, DELAWARE

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - PENSION PLANS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(2)

(3)

(4)

(8)

(6)

Unfunded
Unfunded (assets in
. . (asseis in excess of}
Calendar Actuarial Actuarial | percentage excess of) Annual Accrued
Value of Accrued Funded Covered s
Year Assets Liabilit Accrued Liability
y (Ni(2) Liability Payrofi as a % of
{(2)-(1) Payroll
(4)/(5)
POLICE
1/1/04 $2,125,582 $2,679,009 71.35% $ 853,427 $ 850,731 100.32%
1/1/05 2,470,563 4,283,237 57.68% 1,812,674 888,480 204.02%
1/1/06 2,798,043 4,781,778 58.51% 1,983,735 1,033,220 191.99%
1/11/07 3,302,971 5,218,074 63.29% 1,915,103 1,051,536 182.12%
1/1/08 3,760,111 5,726,593 65.66% 1,966,482 1,154,660 170.31%
111109 3,530,825 6,325,849 55.82% 2,795,024 1,301,300 214.79%
FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE
171/04 $2,053,994 $2,626,331 78.21% $ 572,337 $1.319.652 43.37%
1/1/05 2,415,258 2,807,982 86.01% 392,724 1,485,680 26.26%
1/1/06 2,730,679 3,846,596 70.99% 1,115,917 1,699,532 65.66%
1/1/07 3,341,855 4,477,833 74.63% 1,135,878 2,005,968 56.63%
1/1/08 3,954,617 5,218,240 75.78% 1,263,623 2,185,008 57.84%
1/1/09 3,590,199 5,898,221 60.89% 2,306,022 2,243,955 102.77%

Effective for the year beginning January 1, 2004, actuarial valuations were calculated using the enfry
age normal actuarial cost method. Prior year actuarial valuations were calculated using the frozen
age entry actuarial cost method.

The above information regarding the Police and Full-dime Employee Pension Funds was taken from

Actuarial Vaiuations presented by Milliman, USA Inc., signed by Graham A. Harrison, FSA and Jill M.
Stanulis, EA.
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TOWN OF SMYRNA, DELAWARE

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - PENSION PLANS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Employer Contributions

Police Pension Trust Fund Employee Pension Trusi Fund
Year Annual Required Percent Annual Required Percent
Ended Contribution Contributed Contribution Contributed
12/31/2000 $ 469,209 100.17% $ 542282 100.16%
12/31/2008 433,209 100.00% 493 484 100.00%
12/31/2007 434 667 106.82% 415,674 108.08%
12/31/2006 355,321 91.70% 238,958 150.40%
12/31/2005 363,687 95.10% 235,818 122.60%
12131/2004 216,631 167.20% 149,474 193.00%
POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - CITY EMPLOYEES AND POLICE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
. Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuariaj Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered | Percentage
) Value of . AAL .
Valuation Assets Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payrall of Covered
Date (@) {AAL) - Entry (b-a) {a/b) {c) Payroll
Age (b) (b-a)/(c)
Full-time
City
Employees | 1/1/2009 3 - 182,015,000 | $2015,000 | 0.00% | $2.244.000 89.80%
Police 1/1/2009 - 3,648,000 1 3,648,000 | 0.00% 1,301,000 | 280.40%
PCST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS
SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL EMPLOYER COST - CIT EMPLOYEES AND POLICE
. Percentage of
Actuarial Annual Annual OPER Net OPEB
Valuation Date OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
Fuli-time City
Employees 1/1/2009 $ 355,000 5.10% $ 337,000
Police 1/1/2009 555,000 9.50% 502,000
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ASSETS

Cash and cash eguivalenis
Investmenis
Insurance contracts

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITHES

NET ASSETS

Assets held in trust for employee

pension benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET
ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

TOWN OF SMYRNA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2609
{With Summarized Comparative Data for December 31, 2008)

Police
Pension

Trust Fund

$ 81971
1,895,278

1,915,160

$3,892,409

$ 4,653

3,887,756

$3,892,409

- 63 -

Employee
Pension Totals
Trust Fund 2009 2008
$ 93,89 $ 175,862 $ 118,768
2,669,339 4,564,617 3,156,931
1,408,757 3,321,917 3,165,268
$4,169,087 $8,062,395 6,438,967
$ 7.009 $ 11,662 3 -
4,162,978 8,050,734 6,438,967
$4,169,087 $8,062,396 $6,438,967




FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

TOWN OF SMYRNA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

(With Summarized Comparative Data for the Year Ended December 31, 2008)

ADDITIONS AND INVESTMENT LLOSSES

Contributions:
Employer contribution
State aid - police
Total Contributions

Investment income:
Interest and dividends
Net {depreciation} appraciation in fair
value of investments
Total Investment Income (loss)
Less investment expense
Net Investment Income (loss)

TOTAL ADDITIONS AND INVESTMENT
LOSSES

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits paid
Administrative expenses

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Police Employee
Pension Pension Totals
Trust Fund Trust Fund 2009 2008
$ 393,700 $§ 543128 $ 036,828 $ 836,785
76,292 - 76,292 80,888
469,992 543,128 1,313,120 926,673
129,309 133,164 262,563 290,588
289,305 386,001 675,306 (1,691,832)
418,704 519,165 937,869 (1,301,344)
46,925 41,380 88,305 80,893
371,779 477,785 849,564 (1,382,237)
841,771 1,020,913 1,862,684 (455,564)
137,315 111,779 249,084 215,797
865 958 1,823 5]
138,180 112,737 250,917 215,803
703,591 908,176 1,611,767 (671,367}
3,184,165 3,254,802 6,438,967 7,110,334
$3,887,756 $4,162 978 $ 8,050,734 $ 6,438,967

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Town of Smyma's compiehensive annuat financial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required supplemeniary
information says about the Town's overall financial healih,

Conients

Financiat Trends

These schedules contain fend information fo help the reader undersiand how the Town's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Net Assets

Changes in Net Assefs

Fund Balances of Govemmental Funds

Changes in Governmental Fund Balances

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information fo help the reader assess the Town's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax.

Reql Estale Tax Revenues by Source

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Property Tax rates - All Overlapping Governments

Principal Taxpayers

Property tax Levies and Collections

Debf Capaciy

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Town's current
levels of ouistanding debt and the Town's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type

Rafios of General Bonded Debt Qutstanding

Direct and Overiapping Governmental Activities Debt

Legal Debt Margin Information

Demographic and Economic information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the Town's financial activities fake place.

Principal Employers Inside Town Limits and Surrounding Municipalities

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Full-Time Equivatents {FTE) Employees

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the Town's financial report relates fo the services the Town provides and the activities it
performs,

Operational Indicators by Function

Capital Asset information

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annudl
financial reports for the relevant year. The Town implemented GASB 34 In fiscal year 2004; schedules presenting
entity-wide information include information beginning in that year,
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TOWN OF SMYRNA

REAL ESTATE TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last ten fiscal years ending December 31, 2009

{Unaudited)

Modified accrual basis of accounting

Fiscal Year Property Tax Transfer Tax Total
2009 $ 1,900,363 $ 6699014 $ 2,570,277
2008 1,743,747 1,051,580 2,795,337
2007 1,138,746 962,133 2,100,879
2006 1,157,148 1,534,963 2,692,111
2005 933,914 1,564,109 2,498,023
2004 805,169 1,492,214 2,297,383
2003 709,448 694,632 1,404,080
2002 686,953 372,471 1,059,424
2001 466,388 253,407 719,795
2000 452,074 153,727 605,801

Notes

1) Property tax, tax rate of .2526 of 100% assessed value net of discounts and penaities.

2) Transfer taxes equal 1.5% of the real property sales value.

Source: Town financial reports
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TOWN OF SMYRNA

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
Last ten fiscal years ending December 31, 2009

(Unaudited)
Percentage of
l.oans Payable
to Assessed
Taxable Value of
Fiscal Year Loans Payable Property (1) Per Capia (2)
2009 $ 3,190,175 0.39% $ 289
2008 3,297,079 0.46% 331
2007 - 0.00% -
2006 - 0.00% -
2005 - 0.00% -
2004 - 0.00% -
2003 - 0.00% -
2002 - 0.00% -
2001 - 0.00% -
2000 - 0.00% -

(1) See the Schedule of Revenue base for Estimated Actual Taxable Value of property data.
(2) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for population data.

Note: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
Source: Town financial reports
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TOWN OF SMYRNA
CAPITAL ASSET INFORMATION

TOWN SERVICE BUILDINGS

Town of Smyrna Administration Building
27 South Market Street Plaza
Smyrna DE, 19977

Town of Smyrna Police Department
325 West Glenwood Avenue
Smyrna DE, 19977

Town of Smyrna Public Works Department
220 Artisan Drive
Smyrna DE, 19977

Town of Smyrna Public Library
107 Scuth Main Street
Smyrna DE, 10977

Source: Town records
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ACQUISITION
DATE

January, 1978

January, 1988

September, 2009

January, 1870
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SINGLE AUDIT



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
OCN AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WATH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

May 11, 2010

To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Smyma
smyma, Delaware

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Smyma, Smyimna, Delaware
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009 which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of the Town of Smyma, Delaware {the "Town®) and have issued our report thereon dated
May 11, 2010, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepled
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Siates.

Internat Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of Smymd's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in infemnal control exists when the design or operation of ¢ control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing thelr assigned functions, 1o prevent,
or detect and correct, misstofements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in infernal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Town's financial statements wilt not be prevented, or detected and
cofrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed fo identify all deficiencies in the internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Smyma

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Smyma’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with cerfain provisions of laws,
reguldtions, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have g direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion,

The resulfs of our tesis disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that is required o be
reported under Government Audffing Standards.

We noted other matters that we have reported to management of the Town of Smyrma in a separcte
lefter dated May 11, 2010.

This report is infended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, the Town Council, management,

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entifies; and is not infended o be and shouid not
be used by anyone cther than these specified parties.

Gl Tt { G

BARBACANE, THORNTON & COMPANY
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

May 11, 2010

To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Smyrma
Smyma, Delaware

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Town of Smyma with the types of compliance requirements
described in the US. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable o each of its major federal programs for the year ended December
31, 2009. The Town of Smyma's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
resufts section of the accompanying schedule of findings and recommendations. Compliance with
the requirements of iaws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the Town of Smyma's management. Our responsibility is 1o express an
opinion on the Town of Smyma's compliance based on our audii.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepled
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Compitroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
"Audits of States, Local Governiments and Nonprofit Organizations." Those standards and OMB Circular
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred o above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major tederal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on ¢
test basis, evidence about the Town of Smyrna’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audif does not provide a legal determination of the
Town of Smymd's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town of Smyrna complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of s major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2009.

Internat Control Over Compliance

The management of the Town of Smyma is responsible for establishing and mainiaining effective
intemnal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and granis
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of
Smyrma's interngl control over complionce with requirements that could have a direct and material
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To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Smyma

effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and fo test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of intermnal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town of Smyrma's infemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in infernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of & control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing thelr
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of complionce
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness In intermnal contfrol over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requitement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis.

Our censideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemnal control that
might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not idenfify any
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider fo be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This report Is inlended solely for the information and use of Mayor, the Town Council. management,

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities; and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties,

Bushrcans T { G

BARBACANE, THORNTON & COMPANY
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TOWN OF SMYRNA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

PART A - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1.

The ouditors’ report expresses unqualified opinions on the financial statements of the Town of
Smyma.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
“Report on internal Confrol over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.”

No instances of noncompliance relating to the financial statements of the Town of Smyrna were
disclosed during the cudit.

No reportable conditions relating fo the audit of the major federal award programs are reported
in the “Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on
Internat Conirol over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133."

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the Town of Smyra
expresses an unguglified opinion.

The auditee is not considered a low-risk auditee. The doliar threshold for determining a type A
program is $300,000.

The programs tested as major programs were:

Program Name CFDA #
Highway Planning and Conshuction 20.205
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water Stafe Revolving Funds (DNREC) 66.458
Capitalization Granis for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds (DHSS) 66.468

PART B - FINDINGS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None,

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

None.
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TOWN OF SMYRNA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTD)

PART C - FINDINGS RELATED TO FEDERAL AWARDS

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None.

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

None.
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NOTE A

NOTE B

TOWN OF SMYRNA

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Town uses the modified accrual method of recording transactions. Revenues are
recorded when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when incurred.

FEDERAL EXPENDITURES

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards reflects federal expenditures for all
individual grants which were active during the fiscal year.
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